
NOTICE OF HEARING
BY THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Date and Time: THURSDAY, 19 OCTOBER 2017, AT 10.00 AM

Place: COUNCIL CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT, 
LYNDHURST

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000
023 8028 5588 - ask for Melanie Stephens
E-mail:  melanie.stephens@nfdc.gov.uk

These papers are also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital 
format

1.  ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN 

To elect a Chairman for the meeting. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified. 

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting.

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2017.

Sub-Committee Procedure (Pages 1 – 2)

4.  APPLICATION FOR A GRANT OF A VEHICLE LICENCE (Pages 3 - 32)

To consider an application for a grant of a vehicle licence. 

5.  ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT 

To: Members of the Sub-Committee:

Cllr S J Clarke
Cllr A T Glass

Cllr L E Harris



This page is intentionally left blank



1

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Grant/Renewal/Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence

Procedure at Hearings before the Licensing Sub-Committee

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be held to determine applications.  
The applicant will have an opportunity to be heard, together with any representatives 
they may wish to call.  

1.2 The application and all representations will be considered by the Licensing Sub-
Committee.

2. PROCEDURE AT HEARINGS

2.1 At the commencement of the meeting, the Chairman of the Licensing Sub-
Committee will:-

(i) Introduce himself/herself and the other members of the Sub-
Committee.

(ii) State the purpose of the hearing and ensure that the Applicant and 
other parties understand the procedure to be followed.

(iii) Read aloud from the agenda paper particulars of the application.

(iv) Ask for the names and addresses of persons the Applicant wishes to 
be heard in support of his application and for the name and status of 
any person representing the Applicant. Likewise the names of other 
representatives will also be recorded. 

2.2 The Licensing Officer’s Report

(i) The Licensing Officer or his representative will present a report on the 
application and call witnesses if appropriate;

(ii) The Applicant, and the Sub-Committee will be given an opportunity to 
question the Licensing Officer or his representative and witnesses, if 
any, on the details of their report and any oral submissions they have 
made. 

2.3 The Applicant’s Case

(i) The Applicant or his representative may make opening remarks;

(ii) The Applicant or his representative will then call any witnesses and/or 
give evidence in support of his case;

(iii) The Licensing Officer or his representative, and the Sub-Committee 
will be given the opportunity to question the Applicant and any of his 
witnesses as they are called; and

Page 1

Agenda Annex



2

(iv) Other persons making representations will give evidence in support of 
his case; 

(v) The Licensing Officer or his representative, and the Sub-Committee 
will be given the opportunity to question those making representations; 
and

(vi) The Applicant or his representative will be given an opportunity of 
asking any further questions of each witness after they have been 
questioned by the other parties in (ii) above.

2.4 Concluding Remarks

(i) The Licensing Officer or his representative will be given the 
opportunity to sum up;

(ii) The Applicant or his representative will be given the opportunity to 
sum up;

(iii) Other persons making representations will be given the opportunity to 
sum up. 

2.5 The Chairman will then ask the applicant and Licensing Officer to leave the 
meeting whilst the Sub-Committee considers the matter.

2.6 The Sub-Committee’s Legal Advisor and the Clerk will remain to give any 
procedural or legal advice and to record the decision.

2.7 Once the Sub-Committee has reached a decision, the Applicant and the 
Licensing Officer will be invited to re-enter the meeting. The Chairman or the 
Legal Advisor will read the decision.  The Applicant and the Licensing Officer 
will be notified of the decision in writing as soon as possible following the 
meeting.

Page 2



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 19 OCTOBER 2017
  
APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A VEHICLE LICENCE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. On 23 August 2017 the Licensing Authority received an application from New Forest 
Executive Hire Ltd, to licence a Private Hire Vehicle. The vehicle is a 3 litre Audio A8 
excel saloon, first registered on 8/12/2014. The application form and supporting 
vehicle documentation is provided at Appendix 1.

1.2. The vehicle has four seats in total, allowing the vehicle to carry a maximum of three 
passengers. The two rear seats are separated by a large console, which provides 
controls for various passenger comfort devices. Appendix 2 provides interior 
photographs of the vehicle. In addition Mr Adams, a Director of New Forest Executive 
Hire Ltd, will present the vehicle for inspection at the hearing.

1.3. All vehicles licensed by the Council must hold a current MOT certificate and pass a 
licensed vehicle test to the standards outlined in the Council’s Statement of 
Principles. A copy of the MOT status is provided with the vehicle documents at 
Appendix 1.

1.4. On 6 September 2017, Mr Adams presented the vehicle at the Council testing facility 
at Hounsdown depot. However the vehicle failed the test, as the vehicle did not meet 
the requisite test standard because the vehicle fell short of the required number of 
rear passenger seats which is contrary to national guidance. 

1.5. In addition, New Forest Executive Travel Ltd hold an exemption from displaying 
NFDC plates on their vehicles due to the nature of their business, client type and 
standard of vehicles. The Operator is requesting that an exemption is also applied to 
this vehicle if licensed. Part I of the Council’s Licensing Policy is provided at 
Appendix 3 and Members can see the minimum criteria of four passenger seats 
required if an operator wishes to apply the exemption of displaying a Private Hire 
licence plate.

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 The provisions of S48 (1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 allows an authority to licence a vehicle as a private hire vehicle if it is satisfied 
that the vehicle is;
(i) Suitable in type, size and design for use as a private hire vehicle;
(ii) Not of such design and appearance as to lead any other person to believe that 

the vehicle is a hackney carriage;
(iii) In a suitable mechanical condition;
(iv) Safe; and
(v) Comfortable.

2.2 In addition the FTA (Freight Transport Association) Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicles National Inspection Standards states at Section 3.0 “Vehicles must be 
capable of carrying at least four and not more than eight passengers in addition to 
the driver”. The relevant extract is provided at Appendix 4. This supports the 
Council’s policy and Part C of the Council’s Licensing Policy can be seen at 
Appendix 5.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2.3 The Department for Transport’s Best Practice Guidance relating to Taxi and Private 
Hire Licensing outlines the following: -

26. The legislation gives local authorities a wide range of discretion 
over the types of vehicle that they can license as taxis or private hire 
vehicles. Some authorities specify conditions that in practice can 
only be met by purpose-built vehicles but the majority license a 
range of vehicles.

27. Normally, the best practice is for local licensing authorities to 
adopt the principle of specifying as many different types of vehicle 
as possible. Indeed, local authorities might usefully set down a 
range of general criteria, leaving it open to the taxi and private hire 
vehicle trades to put forward vehicles of their own choice which can 
be shown to meet those criteria. In that way there can be flexibility 
for new vehicle types to be readily taken into account.

28. It is suggested that local licensing authorities should give very 
careful consideration to a policy which automatically rules out 
particular types of vehicle or prescribes only one type or a small 
number of types of vehicle. For example, the Department believes 
authorities should be particularly cautious about specifying only 
purpose-built taxis, with the strict constraint on supply that that 
implies. But of course the purpose-built vehicles are amongst those 
which a local authority could be expected to license. Similarly, it 
may be too restrictive to automatically rule out considering Multi-
Purpose Vehicles, or to license them for fewer passengers than 
their seating capacity (provided of course that the capacity of the 
vehicle is not more than eight passengers).

2.4 The Vehicle Examination Report provided at Appendix 6, completed by the qualified 
NFDC examiner, states the nature of the failure. That being that the minimum seating 
capacity requirements are not met by the vehicle as it can only provide three 
passenger seats. In addition the spacing of the number plate needs to be addressed.

2.5 Following the failure, Mr Adams, Director of New Forest Executive Travel Ltd 
contacted the Licensing Manager to ask why the vehicle had failed. The Council’s 
current position was explained, however Mr Adams would like to provide this 
executive vehicle to enhance his business offering to his executive clients. The 
vehicle is aimed at providing additional comfort and facilities and the provision of only 
three passengers he feels would not be detrimental to his clients or the Council. 
Emails from Mr Adams can be found at Appendix 7.

2.6 Mr Adams stated that a vehicle with only two seats has previously been licensed, 
however officers have not found any such licence in the historical records available. 

3 RELEVANT POLICY 

3.1 Appendix 3 provides the Council’s policy. Part I of the policy for Private Hire vehicle 
plate exemptions states that the minimum number of passengers for this type of 
vehicle is four.

Page 4



4. CONCLUSION

4.1 This application is brought before the Sub-Committee as the vehicle does meet the 
current vehicle specifications, due to the number of passengers that it can carry. It 
should be noted that as a Private Hire Vehicle, all bookings will be made through the 
licensed operator, New Forest Executive Travel Ltd who are responsible for 
despatching the appropriate sized vehicles to customers. As the vehicle would be 
registered for pre-booked journeys only, it would not be available for flagging down or 
rank work.

4.2 The Sub-Committee should determine if this vehicle should be licensed as a private 
hire vehicle with this Council and also be exempted from the normal requirement to 
display council plates.

5. FINANCIAL, CRIME & DISORDER & ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are none arising from this report.

6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

6.1 There are no issues currently arising from this report.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines the application.

For further information, 
please contact:

    Background Papers:
    NFDC Statement of Principles

Christa Ferguson
Licensing Manager
Licensing Services                                                 
Tel: (023) 8028 4681
Email: licensing@nfdc.gov.uk

                               associated documents associated documents

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Sub-Committee Procedure
	4 Application for a Grant of a Vehicle Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7


